
Minutes of Planning Commission Meeting 

held Monday, June 12, 2017, at 7:00 P.M. 

in the Council Chambers, 11 North 3 rd Street, 

Jacksonville Beach, Florida 

Call to Order 

The meeting was called to order Chairman Greg Sutton. 

Roll Call 

Greg Sutton (Chairperson) 
Terry DeLoach (Vice Chairperson) 

Bill Callan (absent) 
David Dahl 
Georgette Dumont 

Alternates 
Britton Sanders 

Margo Moehring 

JACl<SONVILLE 

BEACH 

Also present were Heather Ireland, Senior Planner, and Staff Assistant Amber Lehman. 

Approval of Minutes 

Mr. DeLoach moved approval of the minutes of May 8, 2016, seconded by Mr. Dahl. Motion to 
approve the minutes was approved unanimously. 

Correspondence 

Ms. Ireland reported that there was additional correspondence received. 

Old Business 

There was no old business. 

New Business 

(A) PC #24-17- Northeast Corner of 4th Avenue North and 5th Street North 

Concept Plat Application for a proposed six-unit townhouse project in a Residential, 
multiple family; RM-1 zoning district, pursuant to Section 34-503 of the Jacksonville Beach 

Land Development Code. 

Staff Report: 

Ms. Ireland read the following into the record: 

The subject property is located at the northeast comer of the intersection of 4th Avenue 
North and 5th Street North. The property is currently used by the Jacksonville Beach Church 
of Christ for parking. The applicant wishes to develop the property with six partially 
attached fee-simple townhouses. The concept plat provided shows six proposed townhouse 
lots that meet the minimum townhouse lot sizes and street frontages for the Residential, 



Minutes of Planning Commission 

Monday, June 12, 2017 

multiple family: RM-1 zoning district, in which they are located (2500 square foot exterior 
lots, and 1,500 square foot interior lots.) 

Adjacent uses include single and multi-family to the west and south, multi-family and 
religious organization to the north, and single family to the east. Fifth Street North in this 
block serves as the boundary between RM-1 and RS-2 zoning districts. The proposed multi
family use is consistent with the mixed use character of the surrounding area, and the 
proposed lots meet the RM-1 zoning district requirements. 

Applicant: 

The applicant, Mr. Curtis Hart, 8051 Tara Lane, Jacksonville, provided a representation of 
the units to the Board. He stated that this request was consistent with the mixed-use 
character of the area. He added that they could have asked for seven units, but are asking 
for six to provide for variety. 

Ms. Dumont asked about the garages. Mr. Hart explained the number of garages proposed 
at the project. 

Public Hearing: 

Mr. Sutton opened the public hearing and asked if anyone wished to speak in favor of or 
in opposition to the application. 

Mr. Joel Dalrymple, 2160 Hovington Circle East, Jacksonville, spoke on behalf of the 
church. He stated that the church has been there since 1957, and it was an aged building 
that needed improvements, which is why they are selling the parcel. 

Ms. Christa Murphy, 519 6th Street North, did not wish to speak to the Board but was in 
opposition to the proposal. 

Ms. Mackenzie Robinson, 406 Third Street, did not wish to speak to the Board but was in 
opposition to the proposal. 

Ms. Leah Hudson, 404 3rd Avenue North, expressed concern about the density as these 
developments encroach on single family neighborhoods. She provided pictures of flooding 
from other multi-family units, adding that flooding will be exasperated by more 
development. She added that traffic is an issue as well. 

Mr. John Tipton, 503 6th Street North, expressed concern about the number of cars that will 
result from this project. 

Mr. Jim Gillis, 800 10th Street North, expressed his concern with flooding and the 
incompatibility of this project with the character of the neighborhood. He also stated that 
these many new units would be unsafe due to the traffic. 

Mr. Tony Komarek, 533 11th Avenue South, recommended denying of the proposal, stating 
that the plan was basically the same as what we denied at a previous meeting. He explained 
that these properties will be rental properties. 

PC 170612 mins Page 2 of9 



Minutes of Planning Commission 

Monday, June 12, 2017 

Ms. Michelle Dunavant, 503 4
th Avenue North, stated her concerns were density, drainage, 

and traffic. She stated that they would prefer single-family units than these types of units. 

She stated that the flooding in the area is a concern. She stated that there is much traffic 

on 4th Street and this will increase that problem. 
I 

Mr. Todd Dunavant, 503 4
th Avenue North, expressed his opposition to the density 

proposed in this development. He stated that the number of garbage cans were a safety 

issue on garbage day. 

Ms. Mackenzie Robinson, 406 Third Avenue North, stated that this is the same issue as 

was addressed before and the proposal was not consistent with the Comprehensive Plan. 

Mr. Hart reminded the Commission that they exceeded the requirement of the Code and 

these units would be less dense than allowed by code. He stated that they will be required 

to retain their water on site, so drainage should not be an issue. He added that they would 

not be asking for a parking variance. In response to Mr. DeLoach, he noted that the units 

were 2200 square feet. 

Ms. Dumont asked about green space and about the attachments. She asked if there was a 

shared wall. Mr. Hart said no. Ms. Dumont asked if it was like the one nearby; Mr. Hart 

stated yes. 

Mr. Sutton asked if they could do an 8-unit apartment. Ms. Ireland stated yes they could. 

Discussion: 

Mr. DeLoach stated that this was different than the last meeting, where they were dealing 

with a total of 24 units. He added that they knew it was coming when they approved the 
parking for the church. He stated that they would have to address the drainage with public 

works. Mr. DeLoach stated that the problem is with the zoning not the application. 

Mr. Dahl stated that this project still had many of the same issues as the previous cases. 
He asked Mr. Hart why all the units couldn't have 2-car garages. 

Ms. Dumont stated that she was not as opposed to this one as the last case. She liked the 
fact that there is more green space. She stated that she also thought that all units should 
have 2-car garages. 

Mr. Sanders noted that the parcel is right across the street from RS-2, so there is no buffer. 
He stated thc:!t he was concerned that the project would have a negative impact on values, 
but not as much as an apartment building. 

Mr. Hart stated that the 2-car garage issue was a marketing issue and they would consider 
it. Mr. DeLoach asked if it would be better to delay this over a denial. Mr. Sutton asked 
Ms. Ireland if they were at the point of approving the number of car garages. Mr. Hart 
stated that he could agree with six 2-car garages. 
Ms. Dumont asked if they could put a condition on a concept plat. Ms. Ireland stated that 
you could. Ms. Dumont asked staff if they could put duplexes on the three lots. Ms. Ireland 

PC 170612 rnins Page 3 of9 



Minutes of Planning Commission 

Monday, June 12, 2017 

(B) 

stated yes. 
Motion: Mr. DeLoach made a motion to approve the application with the condition that 

all units have 2-car garages. The motion was seconded by Ms. Dumont. 

Roll call vote: Ayes - Dahl, DeLoach, Dumont and Sutton. Nays - Sanders. The motion 
was approved 4-1. 

PC #25-17- 322 and 514 pt Street North 

Conditional Use Application for a miscellaneous amusement and recreation services 
business pursuant to Section 32-345(d)(4) of the Jacksonville Beach Land Development 

Code. 

Staff Report: 

Ms. Ireland read the following into the record: 

The subject property, Lynch's Irish Pub, is located on 1st Street North, directly across from 

· the pier's public parking lot. The applicant has received permission from the property 

owner to use a small outside space on the south side of the building to locate a docking 
station for rental bicycles (SWARM). Bicycles are rented through a smart phone app, and 

renters are not required to interact with anyone at the subject location. The applicant was 
advised by staff that conditional use approval would be required for any proposed 

location(s) as bicycle rental falls under "miscellaneous amusement and recreation services" 
as identified in the Land Development Code. 

Adjacent uses include commercial to the south, mixed-use to the north, public parking to 

the east, and a museum to the west. Considering the mixed-use nature of the surrounding 
area, and the low intensity of the proposed use, adjacent properties should not be negatively 
impacted. 

Applicant: 

The applicant, Mr. Jeff Dennis, 14252 Palmetto Springs Street, Jacksonville, stated that it 
was a simple idea where an app is used to rent bikes. He stated that there will be ten bikes 
and 18 docking stations at two locations. 

Public Hearing: 

Mr. Sutton opened the public hearing and asked if anyone wished to speak in favor of or 
in opposition to the application. 

Mr. Tony Hall, 221 pt Street, stated he doesn't have a problem with competition, but 
expressed concern about taxes not coming back to Jacksonville Beach. He added that the 
other bike rentals keep the money local. He also stated that all permits should have been 
secured before opening the business. 

Ms. Jameer Shriver, 225 North 3rd Street, asked if they were going to expand beyond ten 
bicycles. 

PC 170612 mins Page 4 of9 



Minutes of Planning Commission 

Monday, June 12, 2017 

Mr. Dennis stated that the company was young and there were no plans for expansion at 

this time. Ms. Dumont asked about the sales tax. Mr. Dennis responded he had no 

knowledge about that. In response to Mr. DeLoach, Mr. Dennis stated that they had talked 
to the City and there was confusion about what was required. Ms. Dumont noted that the 
County redistributed sales tax based on population but not into the municipality where 

collected. 

Discussion: 

Ms. Ireland noted that a building permit was not needed for a bike rack. Ms. Dumont asked 

if they could set it up anywhere. Ms. Ireland responded because it's associated with bike 
rentals there was the need for a conditional use approval, and stated that she didn't know 
if a permit was pulled. 

Additionally, Ms. Ireland said that they did complete a local business tax license with the 
City of Jacksonville Beach City Clerk's office. 

Motion: Mr. DeLoach made a motion to approve the application. The motion was 
seconded by Mr. Dahl. 

Roll call vote: Ayes - Dahl, DeLoach, Dumont, Sutton, and Sanders. The motion was 
approved unanimously. 

(C) PC #26-17- 922 9th Street South 

Land Development Code Text Amendment Application to amend Section 34-346 to add 
"Firearm manufacturing and retail sales" to the list of Permitted Uses in Industrial: 1-1 
zoning districts. (Applicant: Coastal Heating and Cooling) 

Staff Report: 

Ms. Ireland read the following into the record: 

The applicant contacted staff to discuss the idea of adding a firearms manufacturing and 

associated firearms retail sales business at a property he currently owns for his heating 
and air conditioning business, located in an Industrial: 1-1 zoning district. The applicant 
was informed by staff that neither the manufacturing of firearms, nor any kind of retail 
were listed as permitted or conditional use in 1-1 zoning districts, so the Land 

· Development Code would have to be amended to allow those uses. 

The Florida Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco, and Firearms classifies the applicant's activity 
as "manufacturing," due to the number of parts required to assemble each firearm that 
would be sold retail. The applicant's location where he wishes to conduct the proposed 
firearm manufacturing and retail is located on the west side of 9th Street South in an 
existing 1-1 zoning district, at an existing business establishment that is permitted in 1-1 
(building contractor). The applicant stated in his application that the retail space would be 
less than 700 square feet and that he has no intention of making changes to the existing 
building, signage, or lighting. 

PC 170612 mins Page 5 of9 



Minutes of Planning Commission 

Monday, June 12, 2017 

Currently, firearms manufacturing or assembly is not permitted in any zoning district in 
the city. "Gunsmith" is currently a permitted use in the C-1 zoning district, under 
miscellaneous repair shops and related services. Gunsmith activities include adjustments, 
repairs, customizations, and cleaning of firearms. Miscellaneous retail, which would 
include the sale of firearms, is currently permitted in C-1, C-2, and CED zoning districts. 
There is currently not a zoning district where the applicant could conduct both firearms 
manufacturing and retail sales at the same location. 

Other manufacturing establishments currently permitted in 1-1 zoning districts include 
bakery products, apparel, wood cabinets, newspaper printing and publishing, commercial 
printing, luggage, computer and office equipment, jewelry, and sign and specialty 
advertising. No stand-alone retail establishments are currently permitted in 1-1 zoning 
districts. 

Staff feels that permitting these types of establishments in 1-1 zoning districts as a 
conditional use would give the City the opportunity to review and control each individual 
site requested. This type of light manufacturing or assembly with associated retail 
activity would not be generally incompatible with the range of other permitted and 
conditional uses in the 1-1 zoning district. 

Applicant: 

The applicant, Mr. David Dick, 1831 Mauva Juan Avenue, Jacksonville, stated that this 
was a text amendment to allow sales of a retail product. He added that there were 3 dealers 
of firearms in Jacksonville Beach. He stated that A TF has already approved the 
application. He added that this would be a very small portion of his shop. 

Ms. Dumont asked about background checks. Mr. Dick stated that anyone who wants to 
buy a gun on-line must have it shipped to someone such as he, who would run the 
background check before proving the gun. 

Mr. DeLoach asked about hours. Mr. Dick responded 10-2 Monday & Tuesday. He added 
that the rest are by appointment only. 

Public Hearing: 

Mr. Sutton opened the public hearing and asked if anyone wished to speak in favor of or 
in opposition to the application. 

Mr. Sutton noted that Ms. Leah Hudson, 404 3 rd Avenue North, was in opposition but did 
not wish to speak. 

Mr. Sutton noted that Ms. Mackenzie Robinson, 406 3 rd Avenue North, was in opposition 
but did not wish to speak. 

Mr. Sutton noted that Ms. Christa Murphy, 519 6th Street North,· was in opposition but did 
not wish to speak. 

PC 170612 mins Page 6 of9 



Minutes of Planning Commission 

Monday, June 12, 2017 

(D) 

Mr. Jim Gilliis, 800 10th Street North, expressed his concern with the vicinity of this 

business with the local school. 

Mr. Tony Komarek, 533 11th Avenue South, stated his concern about changing the 

municipal code and the potential to sell guns in the entire island district. He thought that 

this was not the right place to establish this type of use. 

Mr. Dahl noted that if he was in C-1 that would be close to schools and he could put this 
business there. 

Discussion: 

Ms. Dumont asked if the wording was changed could they have a brewery of some type in 

this location. Ms. Ireland stated that when they changed the code to allow distillery it only 

allowed the manufacturing of liquor, so this would only be specific to this manufacturing. 

Mr. Dahl stated that he would be putting components together for a firearm, so it was more 

of an assembling of a firearm than manufacturing. Mr. Dick noted that anything more than 

9 parts would require to be a manufacturer. He noted that there were 8 security cameras, 

and the building is concrete block with a metal roof. He added that A TF required him to 

be more than 500 yards from a school. 

Ms. Dumont stated that she was concerned about the implications were for other businesses 

in the district. Mr. Dahl stated that if manufacturing was added to the Code it allowed the 

City to address all manufacturing uses proposed. 

Ms. Ireland noted that it was written as a permitted use just for firearm manufacturing and 

sales. 

Motion: Ms. Dumont made a motion to approve the application, amending the request so 

that it was a conditional use and not a permitted use. The motion was seconded by Mr. 
DeLoach. 

Roll call vote: Ayes - Dahl, DeLoach, Dumont, Sutton, and Sanders. The motion was 

approved unanimously. 

PC #27-17- 918 2nd Avenue North 

Concept Plat Application for a proposed five-unit townhouse project in a Residential, 

multiple family: RM-1 zoning district, pursuant to Section 34-503 of the Jacksonville 
Beach Land Development Code. 

Staff Report: 

Ms. Ireland read the following into the record: 

The subject property is located in the south side of 2nd Avenue North, between 1 oth Street 
and 9th Street North. The property currently exists as a triplex with the fourth unit in a 
detached structure built in 1959 and 1972 respectfully. The applicant would like to 

PC 170612mins Page 7 of9 



Minutes of Planning Commission 

Monday, June 12, 2017 

redevelop the property with a proposed five-unit partially attached fee-simple townhouse 
project. The concept plat provided shows five proposed townhouse lots that meet the 
minimum townhouse lot sizes and street frontages for the Residential, multiple family: 

RM-1 zoning district, in which they are located (2500 square foot exterior lots, and 1,500 
square foot interior lots.) 

Adjacent uses include single-family to the north and single and multi-family to the west, 
south, and east. Second Avenue North in this block serves as the boundary between RM-1 
and RS-2 zoning districts. The proposed townhouses would not be inconsistent with the 
mixed use character of the surrounding area, or the existing multi-family use of the subject 
property. The proposed and the proposed lots meet the RM-1 zoning district requirements. 

Applicant: 

The applicant, Mr. Oliver Kraut, 226 Tallwood Road, provided the Board with an overview 
of the subject property. He showed that multi-family development is prevalent in this area 
of the City. He stated that it met all of the standards of the City, and has proposed less than 
what could b_e allowed. He stated that all units would have 2-car garages. He stated that 
there are already four uni ts on the parcel. 

Public Hearing: 

Mr. Sutton opened the public hearing and asked if anyone wished to speak in favor of or 
in opposition to the application. 

Ms. Leah Hudson, 404 3rd Avenue North, express�d her concerns about density and sprawl. 
She stated that there were concerns about drainage issues. 

Mr. Sutton noted that Ms. Mackenzie Robinson, 406 3rd Avenue North, was in opposition 
but did not wish to speak. 

Mr. Sutton noted that Ms. Christa Murphy, 519 6th Street North, was in opposition but did 
not wish to speak. 

Mr. Sutton noted that Ms. Marcelle Gilliis, 800 1 oth Street North, was in opposition to this 
application as well as 24-1 7. 

Mr. John Tipton, 503 6th Street North, recognized the Board for their efforts and stated that 
he agreed with this development and its 2-car garages. 

Mr. Tony Komarek, 533 11th Avenue South, reviewed the handout given earlier. He noted 
the amount of parking that was required at apartment units. He reiterated his concern that 
density was a problem in the City. 

Discussion: 

Mr. Kraut noted that flooding issues are a problem in the City, but it is not because of the 
townhouse developments. 

PC 170612 mins Page 8 of9 



Minutes of Planning Commission 

Monday, June 12, 2017 

Ms. Dumont asked if flood mitigation was required. Ms. Ireland stated that all buildings 
will need gutters, which would need to be tied to stormwater system. 

Mr. Sanders stated that the applicant should be commended for only proposing five units 
and stated he did not have an issue with it. Ms. Dumont agreed that this plan helped address 
concerns of the Board and the residents. 

Mr. Dahl noted that the character of this neighborhood has already been established. 

Motion: Ms. Dumont made a motion to approve the application. The motion was seconded 
by Mr. DeLoach. 

Roll call vote: Ayes - Dahl, DeLoach, Dumont, Sutton, and Sanders. The motion was 
approved unanimously. 

Planning & Development Director's Report 

The next meeting is scheduled for June 26, 2017. Mr. Sutton noted that he would not be present 
and Mr. DeLoach will be chairing his final meeting. 

Adjournment 

There being no further business coming before the Commission, Mr. Sutton adjourned the meeting 
at 8:47 P.M. 

Submitted by: Amber Maria Lehman 

Approval: 

Date: 

PC 170612 mins Page 9 of9 


